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177 Yest M3in Street

Located on the south side of "The Forks" in Westminster, no. 177
is basicallv a small L-shaned house that has arown and arown and arovn over
the vears. The north (entrance) facade rests on a low fieldstone foundation,
and stretches four bays wide along the south side of Yest Main Street. 0penings
in this stretcher bond facade apnear randomlv: second-storv windows were at one
time two-over-two naned, but archless above narrow white wooden sills. Three
of these windows remain so today, but one has now been converted into a set of
French Doors hetween black louvered shutters - the doors lead to a narrow iron-
railed halcony. This house, oricinally datina from the 183"'s, is one of the
oldest in Westminster's West End, and was, nrobably, originallv the house (or
store) of one Francis Henry Henry, and was built in the tradition of other small
house/shops in the City, notahly John Reaver's and "1liam Frazier Fouse/Shon,
153 East Main Street.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located on the south side of "The Forks" in Westminster,
where Pennsylvania Avenue branches off of West Main Street (St. Route
32), no. 107 West Main Street is basically a small L-shaned house
that has grown and grown over the years. The north (entrance) facade
rests on a low fieldstone foundation, and stretches 4 bays wide along
the south side of West Main Street. Openings in this stretcher bond
facade appear randomly: second story windows were at one time two-over-
two paned, but archless, above narrow white wooden sills. Three of
them remain so today, but one has now been converted into French doors
between black louvered shutters -- the doors lead to a narrow iron-
railed balcony. The pattern of the second story bays is WWDW, reading
east to west. The ground floor is no less confusing - there is a
broad 8/8 unarched window to the west, and an elaborately enframed
double door to the east of it. The door, a half-wood, half-glass affair,
now rests behind a set of double glass and aluminum storm doors. An
elaborate two-part entablature crowns the door, an entablature whose
frieze is decorated by naturalistic sectional carvings that resemble
a cross between a thistle and a tulip. Massive beaded scroll brackets
support this entablature and are in turn finished off by germanic
carved applique at their bases. Further to the east, where, presumably,
once was a window to match the one to the west, now is a two-paned
narrow door, between recessed single-pane side lights. The side 1lights have
deep white wooden sills, both doors are approached by a single granite
step. There is evidence of alterations under the eaves, an area now
filled in by broad boards below a simple cornice which finishes off
the low-pitched, tinned, gable roof. The balcony is supported, in part,
by three cast iron brackets.

The west wall is flush with its neighboring building; the east
wall opens to a 10' alley. Above the alley, the wall is two bays wide,
with two windows per floor, with a small 6-1ight window in the attic in
the center of the gable. Windows resemble the 2/2 windows in the principal
facade, except for the northerly window of the second floor, which is
a three-sided hipped-roof oriel. Each side of the oriel has one 4/4
window between a panelled base and a bracketed cornice. The stretcher
bond brick of the wall, and the wood of the oriel are both painted
white, as are all other facades of no. 107.

The south side of the building presents a series of additions
and alterations. From this vantage point, it seems probable that the
original house consisted of the two western bays; the two chimneys which
rise from the roof's peak are placed such that they would have been exterior
chimneys of the two-bay house, and a two-story, two-bay by two-bay rear
addition, perpendicular, in good local style, is also of this width. This
white clapboard addition has two 6/6 windows on each of its floors on its
eastern facade. Other facades have been covered, or were, such as the

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Number 107 is significant in the Westminster streetscape, both
for its architecture (its continuous additions make it a catalog of
local vernacular styles for a 100 years), as well as historic (if the
house dates from the 1830's, as it seems to, it is one of the oldest
houses in this more recent section of town). The diary of Katharine
Jones Shellman refers to a house and store of one Francis Henry and of
his mother - the diary (loosely) covers the years 1820-1840. Land
record research reveals that, in fact, this lot was owned by one "Francis
Henry Henry" until an equity case forced its sale in 1837. Although,
unfortunately access to the building has not been granted, observing
certain exterior features, such as chimney placement as noted in number
7, make it colorable that this once was a 2-bay building which could
have been the house, or the store, of Francis Henry "Henry". If so,
the building was firmly in the style evidenced elsewhere in the City -
such as John Beaver's house and shop, and 153 East Main Street (q.v.).
Later owners probably momentarily prospered and felt the desire to add
to this simple structure; additions would include doubling it in size,
adding the late-Victorian oriel and main door surround, and the (unique
for Westminster) cast iron balcony - supporting brackets. Thus, although
the house is not conventionally pleasing to the eye, it is certainly not
lacking in interest.

These decorative additions, while perhaps a manifestation of
a "momentary prosperity", must have strained their builders, as the
history of the house is nothing but a series of mortgage foreclosures
and equity cases, beginning with the first recorded mention of the lot,
in Carroll County Deed Book WW1, Page 150 when John Orendorff, as
trustee, sold the real estate of Francis Henry Henry on April 1, 1837
for $1700 to George Orendorff. (Unfortunately, the Henry family can't
be further traced in Westminster or Frederick). Exactly 6 years later,
Joseph Orendorff sold the property to 0livia Liester for $2800 (2/262).
The title plods along (26/458, 31/198) until our property is joined with
the "Western Hotel Lot" and is sold to David Herring on November 18, 1874
in Deed 44/275; this deed mentions both the Western Hotel and "a two-story
brick dwelling". It takes five transfers to get the property in the 20th
century; most of these, as noted, deal with foreclosures (54/246, 68/156,
65,551, 73/406, and 81/123). This last deed 81/123 vests title in Emily
J. Hull, wife of Jacob, who bought it for $2350 on July 17, 1895. She
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Being the western 33 feet of 1ot 7 of B.S. Pigmans Addition
to Westminster.
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west facade, blind originally. The shed-roofed addition to the north has
three 6/6 windows on its east facade, one on the second story, two on the
ground floor, and a modern glass and aluminum storm door, too on the
eastern corner of its south facade. The door is apnroached by a set of
concrete steps with simple iron railings that match those of the north
facade's balcony. Tall, narrow, flat-capped chimneys rise at the peak

of the original section's roof, and in the center of this shed-roofed
addition. It is possible that when the eastern two bays were built,

a two-story porch was strung across their south facade. This was a very
common practice in the area, as has been the practice of later enclosing
this porch, which seems to have haonpened here, as there is a two-story,
shingled, shed-rcofed addition to the south in the L formed by the original
extension and the eastern two bays. This enclosed porch, for such it
must be, has two sets of twelve-light sliding windows on its second floor,
and two narrow 6/6 windows on its ground floor.

The large, metal, bulkhead, cellar entrance is located at the
southeast corner of the shed-roofed extension; north of it the cellar
is lighted by three small rectangular windows.
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bought onlyv that section (33' x 198') containing no. 1N7. Emily's daughter,
Prevat Bankhard and her husband then sold the land to the present owner,
Mary E. Hull, on July 13, 1936 (164/271).
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